ENB 10" Anniversary 1992-2

0 - = =
Earth Negotiations Bulletin
.A.R(.ap;)rEin.g ée;vi.ce.fc;r I.En.vi;or.m;er;t z:ma Iie:/eiop;m.er;t Iile:\:]oltia;ti:)ns
Online at http://www.iisd.ca/climate/sb16/index.html

1ISD

Vol. 12 No. 199

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)

Friday, 14 June 2002

UNFCCC SB-16 HIGHLIGHTS
THURSDAY, 13 JUNE 2002

SBSTA met in morning and evening sessions to consider the
draft conclusions on its agenda items. Parties agreed to conclusions
on guidelines on reporting and review of greenhouse gas invento-
ries from Annex | Parties, Protocol Articles 5 (methodological
issues), 7 (communication of information), and 8 (review of infor-
mation), activities implemented jointly (AlJ), development of
good practice guidance and other information for LULUCF, and
development of definitions and modalities for LULUCF under the
CDM. They also adopted conclusions on technology transfer,
efforts to protect the ozone layer and to safeguard the global
climate system, policies and measures (P&Ms), UNFCCC Article
6 (education, training and public awareness), the special circum-
stances of Croatia under UNFCCC Article 4.6 (flexibility for
EITs), issues relating to cleaner or less greenhouse gas-emitting
energy, and implementation of Protocol Article 2.3 (adverse effects
of P&M:s).

SBSTA did not reach agreement on the IPCC TAR, or on
elements of cooperation with relevant international organizations,
and will reconvene to take up these matters on Friday.

SBSTA

METHODOLOGICAL ISSUES: Greenhouse Gas Inven-
tories: Chair Thorgeirsson asked contact group Co-Chair Newton
Paciornik (Brazil) to report on draft conclusions on guidelines on
reporting and review of greenhouse gas inventories from Annex |
Parties (FCCC/SBSTA/2002/L.5 and Add.1 and Add.2). Co-Chair
Paciornik noted that the group had eliminated redundancies and
identified gaps in the guidelines, leading to more consistent, accu-
rate and complete greenhouse gas inventories. The SBSTA
adopted the conclusions, which include annexes containing two
draft COP-8 decisions on revisions to the guidelines for the prepa-
ration of Annex | national communications, and on revisions to the
UNFCCC guidelines for the technical review of Annex | green-
house gas inventories. SWITZERLAND noted the absence of prin-
ciples on carbon storage reporting, and accounting of assigned
amounts under the Protocol, and Chair Thorgeirsson said the
matter would be noted in the session’s report.

Avrticles 5, 7 and 8: Contact group Co-Chair Festus Luboyera
(South Africa) noted that the contact group had considered all
issues under the agenda item and produced SBSTA conclusions
(FCCC/SBSTA/2002/L.6 and Add.1). He said the group had
approved a draft COP-8 decision on demonstrable progress, and
that a draft COP-8 decision including guidelines for the reinstate-
ment of eligibility to use the mechanisms had been agreed, with the
exception of the time frames. Murray Ward (New Zealand)
reported on informal consultations he had conducted on technical
standards for registries, and said a document would be available
later in the day. SBSTA adopted the conclusions in their entirety.

AlJ: Contact group Co-Chair Mamadou Honadia (Burkina
Faso) noted that the group had met twice formally and once infor-
mally, and had concluded discussion of the revised uniform
reporting format (URF). He introduced the draft conclusions and
draft COP-8 decision, including the revised URF annexed to the
decision (FCCC/SBSTA/2002/L.2 and Add. 1). Delegates adopted
the conclusions, with an amendment to the title of the part of the
URF on capacity building and technology transfer.

Good Practice Guidance for LULUCF: Chair Thorgeirsson
presented draft conclusions on the development of good practice
guidance and other information for LULUCF (FCCC/SBSTA/
2002/CRP.2). The conclusions, which welcome progress made by
the IPCC in the development of LULUCF good practice guidance
and in the completion of its work by COP-9 (11/CP.7), were
adopted without amendment.

LULUCF under the CDM: Contact group Co-Chair Karsten
Sach (Germany) said the group had produced and agreed on the
TOR and agenda for work on definitions and modalities for affor-
estation and reforestation under the CDM during the first commit-
ment period. He introduced the draft conclusions (FCCC/SBSTA/
2002/L..8), which the SBSTA adopted after including some minor
editorial changes. TUVALU expressed disappointment that the
SBSTA had failed to agree on the definitions on afforestation and
reforestation, noting that these definitions had been adopted in a
COP-7 decision (11/CP.7). He stated that if the COP-7 decision is
reopened then he would introduce a number of new definitions
under Protocol Article 3.3 and 3.4 (LULUCF).

TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER: Chair Thorgeirsson
explained that he had asked Terry Carrington (UK) and Philip
Gwage (Uganda) to prepare draft conclusions on this item in
consultation with interested Parties. Terry Carrington informed the
SBSTA that four meetings had been convened to consider the
reports of two relevant workshops (FCCC/SBSTA/2002/INF.6 and
INF.7) and the proposed work programme for the Expert Group on
Technology Transfer (EGTT) for 2002-2003 (FCCC/SBSTA/2002/
CRP.1). He highlighted useful discussions on the EGTT’s work,
and said this had resulted in several modifications to the work
programme, which appears as an annex to the draft conclusions
(FCCC/SBSTA/2002/L.9). Parties then adopted the draft conclu-
sions.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN OZONE AND CLIMATE
EFFORTS: Chair Thorgeirsson indicated that informal conclu-
sions had been conducted by Richard Bradley (US), who then
briefed Parties on these discussions, noting agreement on the value
of a balanced information package and a process for recom-
mending a draft decision at SB-17 for COP-8. He informed the
SBSTA that agreement had been reached the previous night, with
the exception of a G-77/CHINA proposal to amend three refer-
ences in the text to relate specifically to “Annex I” Parties.

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Emily Boyd <emily@iisd.org>, Michael Lisowski <michaell@iisd.org>, Lisa
Schipper <lisa@iisd.org>, Malena Sell <malena@iisd.org>, and Chris Spence <chris@iisd.org>. The Digital Editor is David Fernau <david@iisd.org>. The Editor is
Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Director of IISD Reporting Services is Langston James "Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Operations Manager
is Marcela Rojo <marcela@iisd.org> and the On-Line Assistant is Diego Noguera <diego@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are The Netherlands Ministry
of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape (SAEFL),
the United Kingdom (through the Department for International Development - DFID), the European Commission (DG-ENV), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, and
the Government of Germany (through German Federal Ministry of Environment - BMU, and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation - BMZ). General
Support for the Bulletin during 2002 is provided by the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Finland, the Government of Australia, the Ministry of Environment
and the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Sweden, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade of New Zealand, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Norway,
Swan International, and the Japanese Ministry of Environment (through the Institute for Global Environmental Strategies — IGES). The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail
at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. 11SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor,
Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of [1SD
and other funders. Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For
permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Director of I1SD Reporting Services. Electronic versions of the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution
lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca. Satellite image provided by The Living Earth, Inc. ©2002 http://livingearth.com. For information
on the Earth Negotiations Bulletin or to arrange coverage of a meeting, conference or workshop, send e-mail to the Director, 11SD Reporting Services at <kimo@iisd.org>
or call to +1-212-644-0217.




Earth Negotiations Bulletin

Friday, 14 June 2002

Vol. 12 No. 199 Page 2

Following further informal consultations on this proposal,
Richard Bradley reported on a compromise whereby reference to
Annex | Parties had been inserted in one paragraph, while another
paragraph had been altered to encourage government-stakeholder
dialogue to advance information sharing “regarding replacement
options for ozone-depleting substances in a manner that contributes
to the objectives of the Montreal Protocol and the UNFCCC.” In
another paragraph, the reference to Parties had been removed so
that only “relevant organizations” were encouraged to make
policy-neutral information available. The SBSTA adopted the draft
conclusions, as amended.

POLICIES AND MEASURES: Contact group Co-Chair
Pierre Giroux (Canada) reported agreement in the group on text for
the draft conclusions, with the exception of a paragraph proposed
by the G-77/China on principles for addressing P&Ms, which
remained bracketed. Following further consultations, Chair Thor-
geirsson reported that a compromise had been reached, with the
proposed paragraph on principles and another referring to para-
graphs 1-5 of the relevant COP-7 decision (13/CP.7) being
removed, and a new paragraph being inserted. He explained that
this new paragraph states that “the SBSTA concluded that consid-
eration of further action on this agenda item shall be based on the
approaches outlined in decision 13/CP.7.” The draft conclusions
(FCCC/SBSTA/2002/L..10) were adopted, as amended.

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS: Cooperation
with Scientific Organizations: Chair Thorgeirsson recalled that
informal consultations had been conducted by Sue Barrell
(Australia) and David Lesolle (Botswana). Sue Barrell informed
delegates that the meetings had resulted in draft conclusions that
included agreement on the urgency of implementing action plans
developed from regional workshops, and that identified priority
areas of concern in the global monitoring systems for climate.
Delegates adopted the draft conclusions (FCCC/SBSTA/2002/L.3)
without amendment.

Cooperation with Other Conventions: On cooperation with
other conventions, Chair Thorgeirsson noted that Clare Breidenich
(US) and Yvette Aguilar (El Salvador) had convened informal
consultations. Clare Breidenich said the discussions had concluded
with agreement on draft conclusions (FCCC/SBSTA/2002/L.3),
which included text reconfirming the mandate of the Joint Liaison
Group (JLG) of the UNFCCC, Convention on Biological Diversity
and UN Convention to Combat Desertification. The SBSTA
adopted the draft conclusions.

Cooperation with UN Bodies: Chair Thorgeirsson introduced
the draft conclusions (FCCC/SBSTA/2002/CRP.4). The US said he
preferred deferring consideration of the methodological aspects
related to emissions from international transport from SB-17 to SB-
18. SAUDI ARABIA, supported by MAURITIUS for the G-77/
CHINA, said Parties should respect the “gentleman’s agreement”
with ICAO, and should only take up methodological issues further
if ICAO considers that SBSTA has the expertise to do so. The EU
disagreed with this position. Chair Thorgeirsson recalled a COP-5
decision (18/CP.5) requesting SBSTA to continue its work on
methodological issues relating to fuel use in international transport.
The G-77/CHINA suggested adding a paragraph in which SBSTA
would bring to the attention of ICAO and IMO the fact that non-
Annex | Parties do not have greenhouse gas reduction targets.
SBSTA was suspended for informal discussions with a view to
reaching consensus on the draft conclusions.

Upon reconvening, the US read proposed text replacing the
disputed paragraph that sets the timeframe for consideration of the
matter for SB-18. SAUDI ARABIA disagreed with the timeframe
and suggested SB-20. Discussion on the issue was deferred until
Friday.

ARTICLE 6: Contact group Co-Chair Jean-Pascal van Yper-
sele (Belgium) presented the results of his group’s work on
preparing a work programme on Article 6 and introduced the draft

conclusions (FCCC/SBSTA/2002/L.11 and Add. 1). He noted the
lack of attention to the Article 6 in the UNFCCC process. On future
work, he said Parties would be invited to submit views on the work
programme by 20 August for compilation into a miscellaneous
document for further consideration at SBSTA-17, and for possible
adoption at COP-8. Co-Chair S. N. Sok Appadu (Mauritius)
appealed to Parties to send comments and complete their work in a
timely manner. BOTSWANA, for the G-77/CHINA, proposed an
amendment to the conclusions to reaffirm the need for a work
programme, taking into account national circumstances and the
availability of resources. He also requested that the conclusions be
amended to reflect that the SBSTA “took note of,” rather than
“formulated,” the annexed draft decision on the Article 6 work
programme. The SBSTA adopted the conclusions as amended.

OTHER MATTERS: Special Circumstances of Croatia: On
special circumstances of Croatia under Convention Article 4.6
(flexibility for EITs) Co-Chair Jim Penman (UK) introduced draft
conclusions, noting that the contact group had considered method-
ological issues. SBSTA adopted the draft conclusions (FCCC/
SBSTA/2002/L.7) without amendment, forwarding the matter to
SBSTA-17 for further consideration, with a view to advising the
SBI at its seventeenth session.

Cleaner or Less Greenhouse Gas-Emitting Energy: Chair
Thorgeirsson introduced draft conclusions on this matter (FCCC/
SBSTA/2002/CRP.5), which the SBSTA adopted as presented.

Implementation of Article 2.3: On Protocol Article 2.3, Chair
Thorgeirsson indicated that Parties had reached consensus, and the
draft conclusions were adopted without amendment (FCCC/
SBSTA/2002/CRP.6).

IPCC TAR: Chair Thorgeirsson asked the Co-Chairs of the
contact group to report on their work. Co-Chair David Warrilow
said “excellent” progress had been made in six open meetings and
two closed informal consultations. He said some paragraphs
remained bracketed, however, and noted that one Party had
proposed an addition that had not been supported in the group.

Chair Thorgeirsson read a modified version of a paragraph
inviting the SBI to consider the TAR in its guidance to the financial
mechanism, and invited Parties to adopt the conclusions. The
RUSSIAN FEDERATION, supported by UKRAINE and opposed
by the US, proposed the inclusion of additional text in which
SBSTA draws “attention to the need for additional research on
concentration of greenhouse gases which might have an impact on
the climate change system.”

SAUDI ARABIA said the process of negotiation in the contact
group had been unfair, and objected to the document on principle.
Chair Thorgeirsson said concerns about negotiating procedure
should be raised in SBI, not in SBSTA. He requested the contact
group Co-Chairs to reconvene in informal negotiations and report
back to SBSTA on Friday.

IN THE CORRIDORS

On the meeting’s penultimate day, many observers were disap-
pointed that the SBSTA failed to conclude as scheduled. Once
again, the politicization of a supposedly technical meeting nearly
ran discussions into the ground. One participant commented on the
inseparability of politics and science, noting the great controversy
surrounding the TAR. Others remarked that certain lobbyists, seen
in intense discussion with a number of delegations, might have
“thrown a spanner in the works.”

THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY

SBI: SBI will meet at 10:00 am in Plenary I and continue at
3:00 pm to consider its draft conclusions.

SBSTA: SBSTA will convene upon the conclusion of SBI to
consider draft conclusions on outstanding agenda items.



